A) IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Kevin Anderson, plaintiff in the underlying action, seeks review of 

the decision described in Part B, below. 

B) COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Mr. Anderson requests this Court accept review of the Washington 

State Court of Appeals, Division III's June 30, 2016 unpublished opinion 

in Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept., Case No. 33783-9-III, which 

affirmed the dismissal of Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept., Walla 

Walla County Superior Court Case No. 15-2-00103-6. 

C) ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Should this Court grant review where an opinion of a Court of Appeals 

panel found RCW 42.56.565(1) to deny any relief to an inmate Public 

Records Act requester absent a showing of bad faith, rather than simply 

denying penalties being awarded to such a requester, in conflict with other 

decisions of the Court of Appeals? RAP 13.4(b)(2). 

2. Assuming this Court accepts review, is Mr. Anderson entitled to costs, 

including reasonable attorney fees, incurred in connection with seeking 

this review? 
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D) STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Petitioner Kevin Anderson, while an inmate at Coyote Ridge 

Corrections Center, requested the Respondent Walla Walla Police 

Department copy public records. CP 22, 25, 28, 163. Specifically, Mr. 

Anderson requested copies of"[ a ]ny records related to [him ]self (Kevin 

Allen Anderson, DOB: January 27, 1974)." CP 25, 163. The Department 

responded by indicating "[w]e have no Walla Walla Police report records 

on file for you. However a current order of protection is on file. Copies 

can be obtained by/through Walla Walla District Court." CP 25, 163-64. 

Mr. Anderson brought a judicial review in Walla Walla Superior 

Court, alleging the Department violated the Public Records Act. CP 1-4. 

On the Department's motion, the trial court dismissed Mr. Anderson's 

action. CP 162-66. The trial court concluded the Department's "records 

response ... cannot reasonably be interpreted in context as a refusal to 

provide responsive records to Kevin Anderson" and therefore that 

"response ... does not constitute a denial of an opportunity to inspect or 

copy a public record." CP 164. The trial court made no findings about 

whether the Department was in possession of responsive public records. 

See CP 162-66. The trial court made no fmdings about whether the 

Department acted in bad faith. See id. 
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Mr. Anderson appealed. CP 167-68. The Department did not cross 

appeal. The Washington State Court of Appeals, Division 3 issued an 

unpublished opinion, affirming the trial court's dismissal. Anderson v. 

Walla Walla Police Dept., No. 33783-9-111, slip op. at 8 (Ct. App. June 30, 

20 16); appx. 8. The Court of Appeals declined to address whether a 

particular record at issue "is a public record that should have been 

disclosed ... because [it]. .. resolve[d] Anderson's claims under RCW 

42.56.565(1)." Appx. at 6. The Court of Appeals opined that RCW 

42.56.565(1) "den[ies] relief to an inmate unless he or she proves bad 

faith." /d. 

Discretionary review is now sought under RAP 13.4(b)(2). 

E) ARGUMENT 

1. This Court grant review where the decision of the Court of 

Appeals held RCW 42.56.565(1) denied any relief to an inmate 

Public Records Act requester absent a showing of bad faith, as 

opposed to denying relief in the form of statutory penalites, 

because that decision is in conflict with other decisions of the 

Court of Appeals. 

"A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: 

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another 

decision of the Court of Appeals." RAP 13.4(b). Here, the Court of 
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Appeals ruled RCW 42.56.565(1) "den[ies] relief to an inmate [requester 

of public records] unless he or she proves bad faith," a holding that is in 

conflict with the plain meaning of the statute and decisions of each 

Division of the Court of Appeals. 

"A court shall not award penalties under RCW 42.56.550(4) to a 

person who was serving a criminal sentence in a state ... correctional 

facility on the date the request was made, unless the court finds that the 

agency acted in bad faith in denying the person the opportunity to inspect 

or copy a public record." RCW 42.56.565(1). "According to the legislative 

committee reports, the bill underlying RCW 42.56.565(1) was introduced 

as a measure to curb abuses by inmates who use the PRA to gain 

automatic penalty provisions when an agency fails to produce eligible 

records." Faulkner v. Dept. of Co"., 183 Wn. App. 93, 105 (2014) 

(internal citation omitted) (emphasis added). "[T]he legislature plainly 

intended to afford prisoners an effective records search, while insulating 

agencies from penalties as long as they did not act in bad faith." Francis 

v. Dept. ofCo"., 178, Wn. App. 42, 60 (2013) (emphasis added). "By 

incorporating the bad faith requirement, the legislature allows penalties for 

inmates only when the conduct ofthe agency defeats the purpose of the 

PRA and deserves harsh punishment." Adams v. Dept. of Co"., 189 Wn. 

App. 925, 938 (2015) (internal citation omitted) (emphasis added). 
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In other words, all three Divisions of the Court of Appeals agree 

that RCW 42.56.565(1) only serves to prevent penalty awards to inmate 

requesters under certain circumstances, not prevent all relief. 

"Any person who prevails against an agency in any action in the 

courts seeking the right to inspect or copy any public record ... . shall be 

awarded all costs .. .incurred in connection with such legal action." 

Francis, 178 Wn. App. at 67 (citing RCW 42.56.550(4)) (emphasis in 

original). The right to or "amount of the penalty has no bearing on a 

prevailing party's right to costs." /d. "[T]he PRA's cost-shifting provision 

is mandatory." /d. at 48; see also West v. Port of Olympia, 183 Wn. App. 

306, 318 (20 14) ("an award of attorney fees to a prevailing party in a PRA 

action is mandatory [although] a penalty award under RCW 42.56.550(4) 

is within the trial court's discretion"). 

Here, the Court of Appeals declined to resolve whether a particular 

record "is a public record that should have been disclosed." Appx. at 6. In 

essence, the Court of Appeals declined to determine whether the 

Department's response constituted a denial, and whether Mr. Anderson is 

the prevailing party. 

Instead, the Court of Appeals considered whether the Department 

had acted in bad faith. Appx. at 6-7. The Court of Appeals considered the 

issue of bad faith, despite the trial court's silence on the subject, and 
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despite the absence of a cross appeal by the Department. See CP 162-66. 

The Court of Appeals did so under the mistaken belief that absence ofbad 

faith constituted a "defen[ se] against Anderson's request for relief," or a 

"ground" on which to "affirm." Appx. at 7-8. The bad faith determination 

only affects whether the trial court could or should assess penalties. A bad 

faith determination has no bearing on whether the Department denied Mr. 

Anderson's public records request, or whether Mr. Anderson is the 

prevailing party entitled to relief other than penalties, such as costs. 

2. Costs, Including Reasonable Attorney Fees, Should Be 

Awarded. 

"Any person who prevails against an agency in any action in the 

courts seeking the right to inspect or copy any public record ... shall be 

awarded all costs, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred in 

connection with such legal action." RCW 42.56.550(4). A prevailing party 

must also be awarded costs, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred in 

bringing an appeal or discretionary review. Progressive Animal Welfare 

Soc. v. Univ. of Wash. (PAWS 1), 114 Wn.2d 677, 690 (1990). 

Here, Mr. Anderson will ultimately be determined to be the 

prevailing party. Thus, he is entitled to costs, including reasonable 

attorney fees. An affidavit of fees and expenses will be filed pursuant to 

RAP 18.1. 
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F) CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated above, petitioner Kevin Anderson