No. 93418-5

Supreme Court of the State of Washington

Kevin Anderson,

Petitioner.

v.

Walla Walla Police Department,

Respondent.

Answer to Petition for Discretionary Review Court of Appeals, Division III, No. 33783-9

J Preston Frederickson, WSBA #36921 Assistant Walla Walla City Attorney Walla Walla City Attorney's Office 15 N. 3rd Ave. Walla Walla, WA 99362 (509) 522-2843



1.

3.	Identity of respondent
4.	Counter-statement of the Case
5.	Argument
6.	Conclusion
7.	Certificate of Service

2. Table of Authorities

AUTHORITIES

Cases

Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept., No. 337383-9-III, slip op. (Ct. App. June 30, 2016)
Bonamy v. City of Seattle, 92 Wn.App 403, 960 P.2d 447 (1998)4
Hobbs v. State Auditor's Office, 183 Wn.App. 925, 335 P.3d 1004 (2014)
Sperr v. City of Spokane, 123 Wn.App. 132, 96 P.3d 1012 (2004) 4
State v. Campbell, 166 Wn.App. 464, 272 P.3d 859 (2011)
Statutes
Revised Code of Washington § 42.56.210
Revised Code of Washington § 42.56.550
Rules and Regulations
Rules of Appellate Procedure 13.4

3. Identity of respondent.

The Walla Walla Police Department (WWPD) is a department of the City of Walla Walla, a non-chartered code city organized under RCW Title 35A.

4. Counter-statement of the Case.

Kevin Anderson sent a request to the Walla Walla Police Department (WWPD) dated March 26, 2014 asking for "[a]ny records related to myself (Kevin Allen Anderson, DOB: January 27, 1974)." CP 163, ¶ 2.2. At the time he made the request, Mr. Anderson was serving a criminal sentence in a state correctional facility. CP 163, ¶ 2.3.

Mr. Anderson's records request was processed by police records clerk, Dana Hood, on March 31, 2014. Ms. Hood checked the records management system using the information provided by Mr. Anderson, found no police report records listed for him, and reasonably concluded that the WWPD had no records responsive to Kevin Anderson's March 26 request. The records management system indicated the existence of a court order that had been issued by the Walla Walla District Court in a matter in which Kevin Anderson was a defendant. Ms. Hood therefore disclosed its existence to Mr. Anderson and referred him to the issuing court, because she knew based on past experience that it was the only place that was sure to have an accurate

and current copy of the order. CP 163, ¶ 2.4.

Ms. Hood handwrote a response on Mr. Anderson's March 26 letter and sent it back to him on March 31, 2014, stating:

Kevin,

We have no Walla Walla Police report records on file for you. However, a current order of protection is on file. Copies can be obtained by/ through Walla Walla District Court.

Ms. Hood reasonably believed that her March 31 response fulfilled Mr. Anderson's March 26 request and provided helpful information to him about the court order. CP 163-64, ¶ 2.5.

The WWPD received no follow up inquiry from Mr. Anderson, and it only became aware that he was dissatisfied with its March 31, 2014 records response upon his filing and service of the summons and complaint in the above-entitled action on February 17, 2015. CP 164, ¶ 2.7.

After being served with the summons and complaint the WWPD learned that Mr. Anderson had already obtained copies of the order and other court records from the Walla Walla District Court before his March 26 records request. CP 164, ¶ 2.6. Respondent respectfully submits that the aforementioned unchallenged factual findings are considered verities on appeal. *State v. Campbell*, 166 Wn.App. 464, 469, 272 P.3d 859 (2011).

5. Argument

A. RAP 13.4 review criteria.

The issue presented for review by Mr. Anderson does not satisfy the review criteria set forth in RAP 13.4(b) and does not raise any legitimate legal conflict with needs resolution by the Supreme Court. Petitioner cites that the Court of Appeals decision is in conflict with other decisions of the Court of Appeals. RAP 13.4(b)(2). Respondent respectfully disagrees and submits that the Court of Appeals ruling properly balances the law with the facts and "the entire record." *Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept.*, No. 337383-9-III, slip op. at 7 (Ct. App. June 30, 2016), and is not in conflict with other decisions of the Court of Appeals.

B. The Walla Walla Police Department did not Deny Access to Public Records.

This case is about an agency trying in earnest to fulfill a public records request. Contrary to Petitioner's position, the Walla Walla Police Department submits that it reasonably interpreted and responded to Mr. Anderson's request and this case is not about the Walla Walla Police Department denying Mr. Anderson public records but rather perpetuating litigation. CP 32-33.

RCW 42.56.550(1) provides a right of action only to a person who

has "been <u>denied</u> an opportunity to inspect or copy a public record by an agency." (emphasis added). See also Hobbs v. State Auditor's Office, 183 Wn.App. 925, 936, ¶ 22, 335 P.3d 1004 (2014).

Petitioner claims in its Petition at pg. 5 that "in essence, the Court of Appeals declined to determine whether the Department's response constituted a denial", solely hinging its decision on the WWPD acting in good faith. This assertion misstates the opinion of the court. Simply stated, the Court of Appeals "affirm[ed] the trials court's denial of relief to Kevin Anderson under the Public Records Act" citing that the WWPD's "claim of good faith does not seek affirmative relief, but rather defends against Anderson's requested relief." *Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept.*, No. 337383-9-III, slip op. at 1, 7 and 8 (Ct. App. June 30, 2016).

The Court of Appeals correctly held that under the Public Records Act that "[a]gencies are not required to be mind readers" and that "[a]n agency need not produce a document that does not exist," "gather records kept by another agency " nor "speculate" that the WWPD "could have held" a record. *Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept.*, No. 337383-9-III, slip op. at 5 and 6, (Ct. App. June 30, 2016). *See also Sperr v. City of Spokane*, 123 Wn.App. 132, 133, 96 P.3d 1012 (2004) and *Bonamy v. City of Seattle*, 92 Wn.App 403, 409, 960 P.2d 447 (1998).

The WWPD's records response was not a denial of a public record under RCW 42.56.550(1) nor as refusing, in whole or in part, inspection of any public record under RCW 42.56.210(3). The Division III, Court of Appeals correctly held that:

After reviewing the entire record, we agree with the trial court that actions taken by the Walla Walla Police Department, on March 31, 2014, were prompt and *meant to provide access to responsive records*. Dana Hood concluded in good faith that the Walla Walla Police Department lacked records responsive to Kevin Anderson's request. Her suggestion to Kevin Anderson that he contact the district court exhibited a desire to be helpful to Anderson rather than to preclude his access to records.

Anderson v. Walla Walla Police Dept., No. 337383-9-III, slip op. at 7 (Ct. App. June 30, 2016) (emphasis added). Mr. Anderson was not denied access to public records.

C. Petitioner is not entitled to attorney fees.

RCW 42.56.550(4) allows for the award of attorney's fees if a requesting party is denied the right to inspect or copy a requested public record. Mr. Anderson was not denied the right to inspect or copy a requested record he is therefore not entitled to such fees.

6. Conclusion.

The Division III, Court of Appeals properly held that the Walla Walla Police Department records response cannot be reasonably interpreted in

context as a refusal to provide responsive records or as an indication that it would provide no further assistance to Mr. Anderson. Petitioner has failed to raise any legitimate legal conflict which needs resolution by the Supreme Court. Therefore, the WWPD respectfully requests that this court deny discretionary review of the Court of Appeals Decision affirming the trial court's order of dismissal. CP 162-65.